

Senate Bill 314

Published
November 13, 1965.

CHAPTER 351

AN ACT to amend 151.01 (4), 151.02 (2) (a), (3) and (6) ; and to create 151.015 of the statutes, relating to the creation, membership, powers and duties of an internship commission, and fees for pharmacy licenses and permits.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. 151.01 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

151.01 (4) The board may adopt bylaws, rules and regulations, *except with respect to internship*, and shall cause prosecution of violations of this chapter. It shall report annually, to the governor and the Wisconsin pharmaceutical association, its proceedings, registrations, receipts and disbursements.

SECTION 2. 151.015 of the statutes is created to read:

151.015 INTERNSHIP COMMISSION. (1) There is created an internship commission of 13 members as follows: the president of the board of pharmacy who shall serve as chairman of the commission; the 4 other members of the board; 4 members of the faculty of the university of Wisconsin school of pharmacy designated by the dean of the school; and 4 additional members selected by the Wisconsin pharmaceutical association. All successor members of the commission except the members of the board, shall serve 4-year terms. The names of members of the commission shall be certified to the secretary of state by the secretary of the commission. Members shall hold office until their successors have been selected. Members of the commission shall receive no compensation, but shall be reimbursed for expenses necessarily incurred by them in attending meetings of the commission outside the county of their residence. The commission shall elect a vice chairman and a secretary. The commission shall determine the qualifications of and appoint a full-time director of internship and such technical and clerical help as it deems necessary outside the classified service.

(2) The commission shall promulgate such rules under ch. 227 and such regulations as are in the public interest necessary to the internship program.

(3) The commission shall have supervisory power over the internship program and shall delegate to the director of internship such supervisory and administrative powers which the commission deems necessary.

(4) The commission shall report annually to the governor, the board and the Wisconsin pharmaceutical association its proceedings, registrations, receipts and disbursements.

SECTION 3. 151.02 (2) (a), (3) and (6) of the statutes are amended to read:

151.02 (2) (a) Graduation from a school or college of pharmacy or a department of pharmacy of a university, which is recognized by the board and which requires for graduation at least a 4-year course. Credit for actual time of attendance at the school, college or department of pharmacy of a university shall be given on the required 48 months of pharmaceutical training; the remainder of the 48 months must be practice and experience in a retail pharmacy or drugstore under the direction and supervision of a registered pharmacist, which practice and experience shall be predominantly work directly related to the selling of drugs, preparing and compounding of pharmaceutical preparations and physicians' prescriptions, and keeping of records and making of reports required under state and federal statutes. The said practice and experience shall include an aggregate of 12 calendar months commencing not earlier than the close of the sophomore college year. Credit for such periods of practice and experience shall be allowed in the discretion of the ~~board~~ *commission* in accordance with such regulations as it ~~may from time to time adopt~~ *adopts*. ~~There shall be a fee of \$1 for registration of apprentices interns under this subsection is \$1.~~ *The fee of \$1 for registration of apprentices interns under this subsection is \$1.* The board may upon satisfactory proof recognize and accept evidence of ~~said~~ practice and experience performed in whole or in part in any other state provided the same is approved and verified by the state board of pharmacy or equivalent agency of such other state.

(3) Applicants filing proofs, satisfactory to the board, of qualifications and training as outlined in sub. (2) shall, after having passed *the* examination by the board and upon payment of a \$5 certificate fee, be granted certificates as registered pharmacists. Proof satisfactory to the board covering experience, preliminary education, college of pharmacy graduation and character herein required shall be filed with the secretary of the board. Every registered pharmacist may continue to be such by annually, at such time as the board determines, renewing his certificate upon paying the fee of ~~\$10~~ *\$17.50*. *Of this fee, \$7.50 shall be set aside for use by the internship commission, shall be used exclusively for purposes of the internship program and shall be disbursed for the purposes of the internship program upon certification of the director of internship or the commission.* Applications for renewal of registration as a pharmacist and payment of the required fee submitted after May 31 shall be accompanied by a penalty fee of \$10. Failure to obtain such renewal for 60 days after the secretary of such board has given a 2nd notice of the expiration of his registration shall terminate the right of any person to be a registered pharmacist within the meaning of this section, and such right can only be acquired by compliance with the provisions concerning *the* original registration, again applying for and passing an examination satisfactory to the board.

(6) The board may ~~in its discretion~~ register as a pharmacist without examination, any person who is duly registered in some other state; provided, that the ~~said~~ person ~~shall produce~~ *produces* satisfactory evi-

dence of having had the required secondary and professional education and training and is possessed of good character and habits demanded of applicants for registration as pharmacists under the laws of this state, and upon payment of ~~\$50~~ \$100 excepting that persons of good character and habits who have become registered as pharmacists in some other state prior to July 31, 1927, shall be required to meet only the requirements which existed in this state at the time when they became registered in such other state, and ~~provided also~~ that the state from which the applicant applies shall, under like conditions, grant reciprocal registration as a pharmacist without examination to pharmacists duly registered in this state.

SECTION 4. The terms of office of the initial members of the internship commission created in SECTION 2 of this act shall be as follows: The terms of the members of the faculty of the university of Wisconsin school of pharmacy designated by the dean of said school shall be 1 year, 2 years, 3 years and 4 years, to be determined; and the terms of members selected by the Wisconsin pharmaceutical association shall be 1 year, 2 years, 3 years, and 4 years, to be determined. Thereafter all terms shall be as provided in s. 151.015.

SECTION 5. This bill is declared to be an emergency bill, recommended by the joint committee on finance, in accordance with the requirements of section 16.47 (2) of the statutes.

Vetoed September 10, 1965; passed over veto October 28, 1965.
